6:00 P.M. Airport Committee Meeting

6:45 P.M, CRA Meeting

AGENDA
CITY OF LAKE CITY
City Council Regular Session
August 15, 2011
7:00 P.M. at City Hall

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

INVOCATION — Councilmember George Ward

1.

2.

ROLL CALL

PROCLAMATIONS

None
MINUTES
A Regular Session-July 18, 2011

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Mandese White Construction, Inc., Construction
Change Directive No. 35 (Airport Project)

Note: Item A was presented at the Airport
Committee Meeting on August 15, 2011.

PERSONS WISHING TO ADDRESS COUNCIL

A, A representative from the Richardson Alumni
Association requesting permission to erect a
permanent monument at the Richardson Complex

PERSONS WISHING TO APPEAR THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA

QLD BUSINESS
None




City Council Agenda

August 15,

Page 2

9.

2011

NEW BUSINESS

A.

RESOLUTIONS :

1.

City of Lake City, Florida Resolution No.
2011-062, Fire Protection Assessmeni
Preliminary Rate Resolution for Fiscal Year
beginning October 1, 2011

City Council Resolution No. 2011-063, if
adopted, will approve amendment Number Nine
to Agreement with First Federal Bank of
Florida to decrease the amount of the
Irrevocable Stand-By Letter of Credit issued
to Florida Gas Utility from $236,000.00 to
$217,000.00

City Council Resolution No. 2011-066, if
adopted, will authorize the City to enter
into a Lockbox Service Agreement with First
Federal Bank of Florida, for the purpose of
permitting the City’s utility customers to
mail utility payments to the lockbox

City Council Resolution No. 2011-067, if
adopted, will appoint members to serve on the
Community Redevelopment Advisory Committee of
the City Council created by City Council
Ordinance No. 2011-2011

City Council Resolution No. 2011-068,
authorizing the City to enter into Change
Order No. 5 to agreement between the City of
Lake City and Mandese White Construction,
relating to the construction of the general
aviation terminal at the Lake City Gateway
Airport authorized by City Council Resolution
No. 2010-078 whereby the contract price of
the agreement is increased by $3,197.81.

Note: This was presented at the Airport
Committee Meeting on August 15, 2011.



City Council Agenda
August 15, 2011
Page 3

B. Health Insurance Plan FY12 (Mr. Tyson Johnson)

Note: Mr. Jchnson will distribute information
at the meeting.

10. DEPARTMENTAL ADMINISTRATION

A, Airport Terminal Funding Adjustment (Wendell
Johnson/Tom Sawyer)

Note: This item was presented at the Airport
Committee Meeting on August 15, 2011.

11, COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS

12, ADJOURNMENT




# 3-A

, !
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES CITY COUﬁCIL
The City Council in and for the citizens of the City of Lake City,
Florida, met in Regular Session, on July 18, 2011 beginning at 7:00 P.M.,

in the City Council Chambers, located at City Hall 205 North Marion
Avenue, Lake City, Fleorida.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

INVOCATION - Vice Mayor - Council Member Melinda Moses

1. ROLL CALL

Mayor/Councilman Stephen M. Witt - absent
Vice Mayor/Council Member Melinda Moses
City Council Jake Hill, Jr.

Eugene Jefferson
George R. Ward

City Attorney Herbert F. Darby
City Manager Wendell Johnson
Sergeant-at-Arms Chief Argatha Gilmore
City Clerk Audrey E. Sikes

2. PROCLAMATIONS

None

3. MINUTES
A Regular Session - July 5, 2011

Mr. Ward made a motion to approve the July '5, 2011 Regular
Session Minutes as presented. Mr. Hill seconded the motion and the
motion carried unanimously on a voice vote.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Hill made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Mr.
Jefferson seconded this motion and the motion carried unanimously on
a voice vote.

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
None



6. PERSONS WISHING TO ADDRESS COUNCIL
None

7. PERSONS WISHING TO APPEAR THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA

Stew Lilker, 247 Southwest Lander Court, Fort White Florida addressed the
members regarding the following:

A. Blanche Hotel
B. DUDA (Designated Urban Development Area)
C. Economic Development

8. OLD BUSINESS
None

9. NEW BUSINESS
A. ORDINANCES:

At this time Vice Mayor Moses closed the regular session and opened a
public hearing for the purposes of hearing comments on City Council
Ordinance No. 2011-2011 and City Council Ordinance No. 2011-201i2. City
Council Ordinance No. 2011-2011 and City Council Ordinance No. 2011-2012
were read by title. Vice Mayor Moses asked if anyone wanted to be heard
on City Council Ordinance No. 2011-2011 and City Council Ordinance No.
2011-2012. No one asked to be heard on City Council Ordinance No. 2011-
2011 and City Council Ordinance No. 2011-2012 therefore Vice Mayor Moses
closed the public hearing.

B. ADOPTION OF ORDINANCES:

1. City Council Ordinance No. 2011-2011 (first reading)
amends and restates Sections 2-48 and 2-49, Article Two,
Chapter 11 of the City Code relating to special and
standing advisory committees of the City Council.

. Mr. Ward made a metion to adopt City Council Oxdinance No.
2011-2011 on first reading relating to standing advisory
committees of the City Council. Mr. Hill seccnded the
motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Hill Avye
Mr. Jeffersocon Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye



2. City Council Ordinance No. 2011-2012 (first reading)
amends Chapter 46, Article III of the City Code relating
to fire protection standards. Mr. Jefferson made a motion
to adopt City Council Ordinance No. 2011-2012 on first
reading relating to fire protection standards. Mr. Hill
saconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the
motion passed.

Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Hill Ave
Mr. Ward Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye
C. RESOLUTIONS
1. City Council Resolution No. 2011-054, if adopted, will

authorize the City to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement
with the State of Florida Department of Transportation
relating to the Melrose Park Elementary School Safety Program.
Mr. Ward made a motion to adopt City Council Resolution No.
2011-054, authorizing a Memorandum of Agreement relating to
the Melrose Park Elementary School Safety Program. Mr.
Jefferson seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken
and the motion passed.

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye
2. City Council Resolution No. 2011-055, if adopted, will

authorize the City to enter into an agreement with Kim
Landry, MD, P.A. for him to serve the City as the Medical
Director for the Emergency Management Dispatch Program at
an annual fee of $20,000.00. Mr. Jefferson made a motion
to adopt City Council Resolution No. 2011-055, authorizing
agreement with Kim Landry, MD. Mr. Ward seconded the
motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Ward Ave
Mr. Hill Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye



City Council Resolution No. 2011-056, if adopted, finds
three parcels of land owned by the City to be no longer
needed for public purposes and declaring them to be
surplus. Mr. Ward made a motion to adopt City Council
Resolution No. 2011-056, declaring three parcels of land as
surplus. Mr. Jefferson seconded the motion. A roll call
vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-057, if adopted, will
authorize the City to transfer and convey to the Columbia
County School Board a parcel of land declared to be surplus
by City Council Resolution No. 2011-056. Referencing item
C on the Resolution, members concurred to modify the
Resolution to indicate that no work had been performed yet
and that it would be completed prior to the title being
conveyed. Mr. Jefferson made a motion to adopt City
Council Resclution Neo. 2011-057, authorizing the City to
convey a parcel of land to the Columbia County School
Board. The motion provides authorization teo the Resolution
to include a reference that no work had been performed as
of this date, however it would be completed prior to the
title being conveyed. Mr. Hill seconded the motion.

A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Hill Ave
Mr. Ward Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-058, if adopted, will
authorize the Lake City Police Department to apply for
the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant in the
amount of $14,749.00 to purchase equipment. Mr. Johnson
assured the members a Resolution to adopt the agreement
will come back for Council approval. Mr. Jefferson made a
motion to adopt City Council Resoclution No. 2011-058
authorizing the Lake City Police Department to apply for
the Edward Byrne-Memorial Justice Assistance Grant in the
amount of $14,749.00. Mr. Ward seconded the motion. A
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.



Mr. Jefferson Aye

Mr. Ward hye
Mr. Hill Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye
6. City Council Resolution No. 2011-059, if adopted, will

authorize the Lake City Police Department to apply for the
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Fiscal Year
2011 County Wide in the amount of $29,838.00. Mr. Ward
made a motion to adopt City Council Resoclution No. 2011-059
authorizing the Lake City Police Department to apply for
the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant in the
amount of $29,838.00. Mr. Jefferson seconded the motion.

A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye
7. City Council Resolution No. 2011-060, if adopted,

establishes a Water Leak Utility Bill Adijustment Policy
effective October 1, 2011. Mr. Jefferson made a motion to
Adopt City Council Resolution No. 2011-0660, establishing a
Water Leak Utility Bill Adjustment Policy. Mr. Hill
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the
motion passed.

Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Mr. Waxrd Aye
Vice Mayor Moses Aye

Discuss council appointed member to serve on the Lake City
Firefighters Board (Vice Mayor Moses). Members concurred this
member should have an accounting and/or financial background.
Members concurred to continue looking for a member.

Staff recommendation to approve proposed FY 12 millage rate and
non-ad valorem assessment (Wendell Jchnson). Mr. Ward made a
motion to utilize a millage rate of 3.9816 for the purposes of
TRIM notices. Mr. Hill seconded the motion. A roll call vote
was taken and the motion passed. :

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Mr. Jefferson - Aye

Vice Mayor Moses Aye



10.

11.

12.

F. Proposed dates for Council Budget Workshops and TRIM schedule
for FY 12 (Wendell Johnson). Members concur to hold the budget

workshops on July 26", 27", and 28", 2011.

DEPARTMENTAL ADMINISTRATION
None

COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS
None

ADJOURNMENT

All matters having been handled, the meeting adjourned at 7:52 PM on
a motion duly made and seconded.

Melinda Moses, Vice-~Mayor/Council Member

Audrey E. Sikes, City Clerk



’ 1
B Mandese White Construction, Inc. C|'| 7 j”’ 4

2631 NW 41st Stréet, Suite E-2 DBSBw o AT LU T i v e _
Gainesville, FL 32606
| 352-373-8883 Ph 352-373-7334 F

Project Change Order No.: 5 OWNER
Lake City Municipal Airport _ Date: 7/13/2011 ARCHITECT
New Terminal Building, Access Rd.

& Terminal Parking Architect's Job No.: 2007044.01 CONTRACTOR
Owner ' ' MWCI Job No.: 1003 FIELD []
City of Lake City ' Contract Date: 9/20/2010 OTHER [
205 N Marion Avenue

Lake City, FL 32055 Contract For: Construction

The original Contract Sum was $ 2,261,961.00
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders b (75,579.39)
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was $ 2,186,381.61
The Contract Sum will be increased/desreased by this Change Order in the amount of $ 3,197.81
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be ' $ 2,189,579.42
The Contract Time will be (increased) {(decreased}-{unchanged) by (_53 ) days.

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is 8/19/2011

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR, AND OWNER

CONTRACTOR : ARCHITECT OWNER

Mandese White Construction, Inc. Passero & Associates City of Lake City

2631 NW 41st Street, Suite E-2 13453 N Main Street . 205 N Marion Avenu /\‘\
Gainesville, FL 32606 ; Lake City, FL 32055 A

WEL2

BY (Signature) b;j BY (Siggature) BY (Signature) ‘ J
Milito Zapata, Sr Project-Manager ' (;Bm H M

(Typed name) (Typed name) | (Typed name)

7/13/2011 il M 1

DATE DATE ) DATE




CHANGE ORDER

based on AIA Document G701-2001

Mandese White Construction, Inc.
2631 NW 41st Street, Suite E-2
Gainesville, FL 32606
352.373-8883 Ph 352-373-7T334 F

Project Change Order No.: 5

Date: 711312011

Lake City Municipal Airport
New Terminal Building, Access
Road & Terminal Parking

Lake City, Florida Architect's Job No.: 2007044.01
Owner MWCI Job No.: 1003
City of Lake City Contract Date: 9/20/2010
205 N Marion Avenue
Lake City, FL 32055 Contract For: Construction
CHANGE ORDER NO. FIVE
SUMMARY OF ITEMS:
Item # _-Description Amount Days
1 COP 30 A CCD 8 - Add back in conduit, tc for line item L-110-6.1 $ 4,629.20
2 COP 62 Rev 2 RF1 44 - metal wall panels and window flashing details g 4,868.00
3 COP 66 Rev 3 Time Extension for multpie COPs $ 12,000.00 53
4 COP 69 |GDP.5 Mechanical Equipment $  /(28,759746)
5 |copesa |90 Plumbing Fixture $  1(6.085.75)
6 COP 70 REV 2 Detail sketches for acoustical application to mtt deck - Revised Design $ 14,669.00
7 COP 71 Changes in Baggage room 104 $ 2.106.00
8 COP 72 Q‘"QT?;- Storefront Aluminum $ 1(22,116.00)]
g COP 73 "|RF1 059 - Revise storefront at Lineman office / reception area $ i 7.088.00 [
10 [cop7sREV2  [Millwork revisions $ 8,885.00
11 COP 78 REV Landscaping / Irrigation $ 7.742.00
12 COP 79 Added Emercency Exit Lights $ 764.00
13 |copao QDP:: Ceramic Tile Flooring $  /(11.049118)
14 COP 88 \C_;‘_REDI_T for security card readers and proximity cards $ r(3,150.00)
15 COP 91 Mechanical Changes required by Building Dept. % 5.132.00
186 COP 94 Additional Sod & Erosion Control $ 3,500.00
'17 COP 87 Pricing, Procurement of Re-Designed ltems $ 2‘975_@
Note: Please note that until these COP's have been approved, MWCI reserves their
right to additional time & GC costs once the full impact of these changes have been
18 assessed

TOTALS

$

3,197.81

2631 NW 41st Street, Suite E-2 * Gainesville, FL 32608 * {352) 373-8883 * (352) 373-7334 Fax * CGC1514227 * CBC055308




CONSTRUCTION OWNER City of Lake City | Y 5
CHANGE OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE  Passero Associates o # j -
DIRECTIVE CONTRACTOR Mandese White Construci...., -
AlA DOCUMENT G714 MODIFIED FiELD
OTHER

(Instructions on reverse side. This document replaces A1A Document G713. Construction Change Authorization.)
PROJECT: Lake City Municipal Airport Terminal DIRECTIVE NO: 35

205 N. Marion Ave. DATE: 8-10-2011

Lake City, FL. 32055 CONTRACT DATE: 0-20-2010

CONTRACT FOR: Construction
TO CONTRACTOR: Mandese-White Construction
2631 NW 41" Street, Suite E-2
Gainesville, FL. 32606

You are hereby directed to make the following change(s) in this Contract:

The Current Contract Completion date established by CCD No. 29 is August 19, 201 1. By order of this CCD No. 35, an additional 20
calendar days shall be added to the Contract Duration. The new Contract Deadline for Substantial Completion shall be established as
September 8, 2011. An additional 30 days will be allowed for Final Completion work after September 8, 2011. The deadline for Final
Completion shali be October 7, 2011 at 5:00 pm E.S.T. The assessment of Liquidated Damage costs {(by City to Contractor) or
payment of General Condition cosis (from City to Contractor) shall be addressed in future Change Order 6 (CO 6) after September 8,

2011.

PROPOSED ADJUSTMENTS

I. The proposed basis of adjustment to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price is:
Lump Sum change of $ 0.00 (zero dollars)

When si gned by the Owner and Owners Representative and received by the Contractor,
this document becomes effective IMMEDIATELY as a Construction Change Director
(CCDY, and the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) described above.

Passero Associates : City of Lake City Mandese-White Construction

13453 N. Main Street 205 N. Marion Avenue 2631 NW 41% Street, Suite E-2
Jacksonville, FL. 32218 Lake City, FL. 32055 Gainesville, FL.. 32606

By: Andrew Holesko By: Wendell Johnson, ICMA By: Joseph White -

Vice President Cily Manager Presiden
Odatn Y~ o (/L/(“\ .t l;j
"3 e[ ofelr

Signature by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement with the proposcd adjustments in Contract Sum and
Contract Time set forth in this Construction Change Directive.

DATE:




#74

CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA RESOLUTION NO. 2011-062

CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA

FIRE PROTECTION ASSESSMENT
PRELIMINARY RATE RESOLUTION FOR
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2011

ADOPTED




CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA RESOLUTION NO. 2011-062

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, RELATING TO
THE PROVISION OF FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES, FACILITIES AND
PROGRAMS IN THE CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA; REIMPOSING FIRE
PROTECTION ASSESSMENT RATES IMPOSED BY RESOLUTION NO.
2009-085; DIRECTING THE PREPARATION OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL;
REAFFIRMING FIRE PROTECTION NOT TO EXCEED ASSESSMENT
RATES AS ADOPTED AND CONFIRMED IN RESOLUTION NOS. 2009-
074, 2009-085, 2010-067 and 2010-086; AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC
HEARING AND DIRECTING THE PROVISION OF NOTICE THEREOF;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LAKE CITY, FLORIDA: '

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY. This resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions
of the Fire Protection Assessment Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2002-958) (the
"Ordinance"); the Initial Assessment Resolution, as amended (Resolution No.
2002-055); the Final Assessment Resolution (Resolution No. 2002-062);
Resolution Nos. 2008-058, 2008-064, 2009-074, 2009-085, 2010-067 and 2010-
086; sections 166.021 and 166.041, Florida Statutes; and other applicable
provisions of law.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE AND DEFINITIONS.

This resolution constitutes the Preliminary Rate Resolution as defined in the
Ordinance, as codified; it initiates the annual process for updating the
Assessment Roll and directs the reimposition of Fire Protection Assessments
for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2011. All capitalized words and
terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the
Ordinance, the Initial Assessment Resolution, as amended, and the Final
Assessment Resolution. Unless the context indicates otherwise, words
imparting the singular number, include the plural number, and vice versa.

SECTION 3. PROVISION AND FUNDING OF FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES.

(A) Upon the imposition of Fire Protection Assessments for fire
protection services, facilities, or programs against Assessed Properly located
within the City, the City shall provide fire protection services to such
Assessed Property. A portion of the cost to provide such fire protection
services, facilities, or programs shall be funded from proceeds of the Fire
Protection Assessments. The remaining cost required to provide fire



protection services, facilities, and programs shall be funded by legally
available City revenues other than Fire Protection Assessment proceeds.

{(B) Itis hereby ascertained, determined, and declared that each
parcel of Assessed Property located within the City will be benefited by the
City's provision of fire-protection services, facilities, and programs in an
amount not less than the Fire Protection Assessment imposed against such
parcel, computed in the manner set forth in Resolution Nos. 2008-058, 2008-
064, 2009-074, 2009-085, 2010-067 and 2010-086, and this Preliminary Rate
Resolution.

SECTION 4. REIMPOSITION OF FIRE PROTECTION ASSESSMENTS.

(A}  Fire Protection Assessmenis shall be imposed against all Tax
Parcels within the Property Use Categories identified in Resolution No. 2008-
058, as modified and confirmed by subsequent resolutions, at the rates
adopted in Resolution No. 2009-085. Fire Protection Assessments shall be
computed in the manner set forth in Resolution Nos. 2008-058, 2008-064,
2009-074, 2009-085, 2010-067 and 2010-086, and in the “City of Lake City Fire
Protection Assessment Report”, dated July 25, 2008, as supplemented and
updated by the 2009 Addendum to the “City of Lake City Fire Protection
Assessment Report”, attached to Resolution No. 2009-074.

{(B) It is hereby ascertained, determined and declared that each parcel
of Assessed Property within the City will be specially benefited by the City's
provision of fire protection services, facilities, and programs in an amount not
less than the Fire Protection Assessment for such parcel, computed in the
manner set forth in this Resolution.

(C) The Fire Protection Assessments to be reimposed for the Fiscal Year
commencing October 1, 2011, are hereby affirmed and readopted as
follows:

FY2011-12 Fire Protection Assessment Rates

Residential Property Category Rates

Sinale Family Residential Rate per Dwelling Unit $171.02.
Multi-Family Residential Rate per Dwelling Unit $117.78

Nonresidential Property Category Rates

Hotel/Motel Rate perSauare Foot  _ 30.0668
Commercial Rate per Sauare Foot $0.1363.
industrial/Warehouse Rate per Savare Foot $0.0725
Vacant/Agricultural Rate per Parcel $ 32.43




SECTION 5. ANNUAL ASSESSMENT ROLL.

(A) The City Manager is hereby directed to prepare, or cause to be
prepared, an updated Assessment Roll for the Fiscal Year commencing
October 1, 2011, in the manner provided in the Ordinance and this
Resolution. The updated Assessment Roli shall include all Tax Parcels within
the Property Use Categories. The City Manager shall apportion the
estimated Fire Protection Assessed Cost to be recovered through Fire
Protection Assessments in the manner set forth in Resolution No. 2008-058, as
modified and confirmed by subsequent resolutions, and this Preliminary Rate
Resolution. A copy of this Preliminary Rate Resolution, the Ordinance, the
Initial Assessment Resolution, as amended, the Final Assessment Resolution,
Resolution Nos. 2008-058, 2008-064, 2009-074, 2009-085, 2010-067 and 2010-
086, documentation related to the estimated amount of the Fire Protection
Assessed Cost to be recovered through the imposition of Fire Protection
Assessments, and the updated Assessment Roll shall be maintained on file in
the office of the City Clerk and open to public inspection. The foregoing
shall not be construed to require that the updated Assessment Roll proposed
for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2011, be in printed form if the
amount of the Fire Protection Assessment for each parcel of property can
be determined by the use of a computer terminal available to the pubilic.

(B) it is hereby ascertained, determined, and declared that the
method of determining the Fire Protection Assessments for fire protection
services as sef forth in Resolution Nos. 2008-058, 2008-064, 2009-074, 2009-085,
2010-067 and 2010-086, and this Preliminary Rate Resolution is a fair and
reasonable method of apportioning the Fire Protection Assessed Cost
among parcels of Assessed Property located within the City.

SECTION 4. REAFFIRMATION OF NOT TO EXCEED FIRE PROTECTION
ASSESSMENT RATES FOR NOTICE PUPOSES. The City hereby reaffirms and
preserves the Not to Exceed Fire Protection Assessment Rates, establishing
maximum assessment rates as defined in Section 46-81 of the Code of the
City of Lake City, Florida, as adopted and established in Resolution No. 2009-
074 and confirmed by Resolution No. 2009-085. To minimize the expense of
any mailed notices in subsequent years, the City will continue to use the Not
to Exceed Notice Rates established and confirmed by Resolution Nos. 2009-
074, 2009-085, 2010-067, 2010-086 and this Resolution for use in any mailed or
published notices required under Section Section 46-105 of the Code of the
City of Lake City, Florida. The Not to Exceed Fire Protection Assessment
Rates are confirmed as follows:



Residential Property Cateqory Not to Exceed Notice Rates

Single Family Rate Per Dwelling Unit  $195.18
Multi-family Rate Per Dwelling Unit $161.40
Nonresidential Property Cateqgory Not to Exceed Notice Rates

Hotel/Motel Rate Per Square Foot $0.0758
Commercial Rate Per Square Foot $0.1546
Industrial/Warehouse Rate Per Square Foot $0.0822
Vacant/Agricultural Rate Per Parcel $ 39.00

SECTION 7. AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC HEARING. There is hereby established
a public hearing to be held at 6:30 p.m. on September é, 2011, in the City
Council Chambers of City Hall, 205 North Marion Avenue, Lake City, Floridg,
at which time the City Councit will receive and consider any comments on
the Fire Protection Assessments from the public and affected property
owners and consider imposing Fire Protection Assessments for the Fiscal Year
beginning October 1, 2011 and collecting such assessments on the same bill
as ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that Fire Protection Assessments for
Government Property shall be collected pursuant to Section 46-130 of the
Code of the City of Lake City, Florida.

SECTION 8. NOTICE BY PUBLICATION. The City Manager shall publish a notice
of the public hearing authorized by Section 7 of this Preliminary Rate
Resolution in the manner and time provided in Section 46-101 of the Code of
the City of Lake City, Florida. The notice shall be in substantially same form
as set forth in Resolution No. 2009-074 with changes as needed to conform
to this Resolution. The notice shall be published no later than August 17,
2011.

SECTION 9. NOTICE BY MAIL. The City Manager shall provide notice by first
class mail to the Owner of each parcel of Assessed Property in the event
circumstances described in Section 46-105 of the Code of the City of Lake
City, Florida so require. The notice shall be in substantially same form as set
forth in Resolution No. 2009-074 with changes as needed to conform to this
Resolution. Such notices shall be mailed no Iater than August 17, 2011.

SECTION 10. APPLICATION OF ASSESSMENT PROCEEDS. Proceeds derived by
the City from the Fire Protection Assessments shall be used for the provision
of fire protection services, facilities, and programs. In the event there is any
fund balance remaining at the end of the Fiscal Year, such balance shall be



carried forward and used only to fund fire protection services, facilities, and
programs.

SECTION 11. CONFLICTS. If any Section, part of Section, paragraph, clause,
phrase or word of this Resolution is in conflict with any other provisions of
previously adopted Fire Protection Assessment Resolutions, the provisions of this
Resolution shail prevail.

SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Preliminary Rate Resolution shall take

effect immediately upon its passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this day of
, 2011,

CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA

Mayor
ATTEST.

City Clerk

(Corporate Seal)

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

City Attorney



HFD/lIss

C-91-460 | | | | ' # 7 A-2 ‘

8/3/2011

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2011-063
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, APPROVING
AMENDMENT NUMBER NINE TO AGREEMENT WITH FIRST FEDERAL
BANK OF FLORIDA TO DECREASE THE AMOUNT OF THE IRREVOCABLE
STAND-BY LETTER OF CREDIT ISSUED TO FLORIDA GAS UTILITY ("FGU")
FROM $236,000.00 TO $217,000.00 AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION

THEREOF BY STEPHEN M. WITT, AS MAYOR, AND AUDREY SIKES, AS
CITY CLERK.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Agreement for Irrévocab!e Stand-By Letter of Credit and
Security Agreement (the "Agreement") approved by Resolution No. 2003-024, as
amended by Amendment Number One, Amendment Number Two, Amendment
Number Three, Amendment Number Four, Amendment Number Five, Amendment
Number Six, Amendment Number Seven and Amendment Number Eight approved by
Resolutions No. 2003-097, 2004-069, 2005-091, 2006-066, 2007-078, 2008-060,
2009-077, and 2010-087 respectively, Bank issued FGU its Irrevocable Stand-By Letter
of Credit No. 423608 (the "Letter of Crédit") in the amended amount of $236,000.00
which expires on September 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, FGU has authorized the City to decrease the Letter of Credit from
$236,000.00 to $217,000.00 effective October 1, 2011, with all of the other terms and
conditions of the Letter of Credit to be unchanged; and

WHEREAS, Bank is willing to amend its Letter of Credit to decrease the amount
from $236,000.00 to $217,000.00; and

WHEREAS, City desires to enter into an amendment to the Agreement with
Bank pursuant to the terms and conditions of Amendment Number Nine, copy of which

is attached hereto as Exhibit "1" and made a part of this resolution ("Amendment



Number Nine") to amend the Letter of Credit by decreasing the amount from
$236,000.00 to $217,000.00, effective October 1, 2011, pursuant to Amendment
Number Nine to the Letter of Credit, copy of which Letter of Credit Amendment Number
Nine is attached hereto as Exhibit "2" and made a part of this resolution

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City is hereby authorized to enter into Amendment Number Nine
to Agreement with Bank and hereby authorizes the execution of Amendment Number
Nine to Agreement by Mayor Stephen M. Witt, and Audrey Sikes, as City Clerk.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this  day of

, 2011,

Mayor-Counciiman

ATTEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By:
- HERBERT F. DARBY
City Attorney



AMENDMENT NUMBER NINE TO AGREEMENT FOR IRREVOCABLE,
STAND-BY LETTER OF CREDIT AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER NINE ("Amendment Number Nine") to Agreement

for Irrevocable Stand-By Letter of Credit and Security Agreement dated April 8, 2003

(the "Agreement") made this ____ day of , 2011, by and between
FIRST FEDERAL BANK OF FLORIDA (formerly known as First Federal Savings Bank
of Florida), whose mailing address is 2571 U. S. 90 West, Lake City, Florida 32056
(herein "Bank"), and the CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation
organized and existing under the laws of Florida, whose mailing address is 205 North
Marion Avenue, Lake City, Florida 32055 (herein "City").

RECITALS.

A. Pursuant to Agreement dated April 8, 2003, as amended by Amendment
Number One dated October 20, 2003, Amendment Number Two dated September 10,
2004, Amendment Number Three dated September 20, 2005, Amendment Number
Four dated September 18, 2006, Amendment Number Five dated August 6, 2007,
Amendment Number Six dated September 2, 2008, Amendment Number Seven dated
September 8, 2009, and Amendment Number Eight dated September 10, 2010,
approved by City Resolutions No. 2003-024, 2003-097, 2004-069, 2005-091, 2006-
066, 2007-078, 2008-060, 2009-077, and 2010-087 respectively, Bank has issued FGU
its Irrevocable Stand-By Letter of Credit No. 423608 (the "Letter of Credit") in the
amended émount of $236,000.00 which expires on September 30, 2011,

B. FGU has authorized the City to decrease the Letter of Credit from
$236,000.00 to $217,000.00 effective October 1, 2011, with all of the other terms and

conditions of the Letter of Credit as amended to be unchanged.

"EXHIBIT"_[ "



C. Bank is willing to amend its Letter of Credit to decrease the amount from

$236,000.00 to $217,000.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and other good and
valuable considerations, Bank and C'ity agree as follows:

1. RECITALS. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are made a part

of this Agreement.

2. AMENDMENT TO LETTER OF CREDIT. Bank hereby agrees to further

. amend its lrrevocable Stand-By Letter of Credit No. 423608 in favor of Florida Gas
Utility to decrease the amount thereof by $19,000.00 to a total of $217,000.00 with all
other terms and conditions of the Letter of Credit as amended to expire on September
30, 2012, at Midnight unless extended or reinstated by Bank

3. AGREEMEﬁT TO CONTINUE TO BE EFFECTIVE. Except as amended by
Amendment Number One, Amendment Number Two, Amendment Number Three,
Amendment Number Four, Amendment Number Five, Amendment Number Six,
Amendment Number Seven, Amendment Number Eight,‘and this Amendment Number

Nine all terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Bank have executed this Agreement this

day of , 2011,
Signed, sealed and delivered FIRST FEDERAL BANK QOF
in the presence of: FLORIDA
By:
Witness Name:
Title:
(type or print name)
(CORPORATE SEAL)
Witness
"BANK"
{type or print name)
Witnesses as to Bank
Signed, sealed and delivered CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA
in the presence of: ’
By:
Witness STEPHEN M. WITT
Mayor
(Print/type name)
ATTEST:
Witness AUDREY SIKES
City Clerk
(Print/type name)
lPCIwII



STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF COLUMBIA
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, 2011, by ,as

of FIRST FEDERAL BANK OF FLORIDA, a corporation
under the laws of the United States of America, on behalf of said Corporation, who is
personally known to me.

Notary Public, State of Florida

(Print/type name)

(NOTARIAL
SEAL) : My Commission Expires:

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF COLUMBIA
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, 2011, by STEPHEN M. WITT and AUDREY SIKES, as Mayor and

City Clerk respectively of the CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, for and on behalf of the
City, who are personally known to me.

Notary Public, State of Florida

(Print/type name)

(NOTARIAL
SEAL) My Commission Expires:



AMENDMENT NUMBER NINE
TO IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 423608

FIRST FEDERAL BANK OF FLORIDA
Post Office Box 2029
Lake City, Florida 32056

, 2011

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 423608

Florida Gas Utility

The Bank of America Building
2815 N.W. 13" Street, Suite 200
Gainesville, Florida 32609

Aftention: Finance Director

Atthe request and on the instructions of our customer, The City of Lake City, Florida
(the "Public Agency"), the Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 423608 for the account of the
City of Lake City, Florida, in favor of Florida Gas Utility is hereby further amended to
decrease the amended amount of Letter of Credit No. 423608 by $19,000.00 to a total of

$217,000.00.

Except as herein amended, all terms and conditions of Letter of Credit No. 423608
as amended by Amendments Number One, Two, Three, Four, Five, Six, Seven and Eight
remain in full force and effect.

Letter of Credit No. 423608 as herein amended sﬁall expire on September 30,
2012, at Midnight, unless extended or reinstated in writing by the undersigned.

Very truly yours,
FIRST FEDERAL BANK OF FLORIDA

By:
Name:
Title:

EXHIBIT" oZ__"



HFD/lss

8/10/2011 l # 2 AN_3

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NOQ. 2011-066

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKE CITY,

FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A LOCK BOX SERVICE

AGREEMENT WITH FIRST FEDERAL BANK OF FLORIDA, FOR THE

PURPOSE OF PERMITTING CITY'S UTILITY CUSTOMERS TO MAIL UTILITY

PAYMENTS TO THE LOCK BOX.

WHEREAS, the City of Lake City, Florida ("City"} owns and operates a water,
sewer and natural gas system (collectively the "City Utility System"); and

WHEREAS, the customers connected to the Utility System are billed monthiy for
water, sewer and natural gas usage pursuant to and in accordance with the respective
rates provided in the City Code; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be both a convenience and
savings to the City customers for the City to provide a depository for its customers to
deposit or maill their utility payments; and

WHEREAS, First Federal Bank of Florida ("Bank") has agreed to provide lockbox
services for the receipt and deposit of City's customers' utility payments pursuant to and
in accordance with Lo‘ckbox Service Agreement, copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit "A" and made a part of this resolution (the "Lockbox Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Lockbox Agreement is subject to such changes, modifications,
or amendments required and authorized by Section 4 of this resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and by this reference are

incorporated herein and made a part of this resolution.



Section 2. The City is hereby authorized to enter into the Lockbox Agreement
with First Federal Bank of Florida, and the Mayor is authorized to execute the Lockbox
Agreement for and on behalf of the City.

Section 3. The City is hereby directed to nofify its utility customers to mail
payments to the lockbox/post office box.

Section 4. The City Manager and City attorney are authorized to make such
reasonable changes and modifications to the Lockbox Agreement as may be deemed
necessary to be in the best interest of the City and its citizens. The Mayor is authorized
and directed to execute and deliver the Lockbox Agreement in the name and on behalf
of the City, with such changes, amendments, modifications, omissions, and additions
made by the City Manager and City Attorney. Execution by the Mayor, City Clerk and
County shall be deemed to be conclusive evidence of approval of such changes,

amendments, modifications, omissions, and additions.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this day of

, 2011,

Mayor-Councilman

ATTEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By:

HERBERT F. DARBY
City Attorney



Lockbox Service Agreement

This agreement ("Agreement”) is entered into on , 20 by and between First Federal Bank of
Florida (“Bank™) and City of Lake City (“Merchant’) to provide lockbox services. Bank and Merchant
agree as follows:

Recitals
This Agreement creates a fockbox arrangement between Bank and Merchant. Bank and Merchant

agrees to the terms of this Agreement governing the administration of the lockbox account and the rights
and responsibilities of each parties. Lockbox “contents” includes cash, items, and anything deposited into
the lockbox account.

1. INITIAL REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS:

1.1 Bank Fees. Merchant agrees to pay a one-time registration and set up fee of $.0.00 in addition
to the Service Fees described in Exhibit A attached hereto, which are changed monthly as provided
herein in Section 2.

1.2 Deposit Account. in each case, Merchant must establish a deposit account with Bank (the
"Account’). Bank will prepare signature cards, and verify Merchant's identity with appropriate Bank
Secrecy Act (BSA) and USA PATRIOT Act verification. Bank's standard disclosure agreement and
account opening documentation requirements are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and
made a part hereof. Merchant agrees to provide to Bank a description of the Merchant's business and/or
product offering along with current financial statements for Merchant. Merchant agrees that Bank may
debit its Account for standard Bank fees and charges.

1.3 Post Office Box. Merchant shall direct its customers to mail payments to the lockbox/post office
box(es) listed in the space below. (Include post office box number, post office box purposse, and post
office box address in the space provided)

Bank may change the name or address of the post office box at its sole discretion. Bank may designate
more than one post office box and designate the receivables that are to be deposited in one or more of

the post office boxes.
14 Pick-up Schedule. Bank or its agents shall pick up the lockbox contents at the following

frequency provided below:

1.5 Payee Designation. The payee designation on lockbox account must be a reasonable variation
of the Merchant's business name. |If the payee is not a reasonable variation, the check may not be
deposited. If the payee is blank, Bank may stamp in payee's company, provided the payee can be
correctly determined from the accompanying papers, and the check will be deposited.

1.6 Notice to Customer. If Merchant opts to collect consumer checks via ACH, Merchant must notify
its customers of its intent to electronically debit Consumer's bank account if check is eligible under
applicable law or Bank policy for electronic check conversion. If customer is paying Merchant pursuant to
a bill mailed to the customer, then the notice must be clearly displayed on or with the billing statement
mailed by Merchant to the customer.

1.7 Provision of Service. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Bank shall make
available to Merchant those services expressly set forth in the Lockbox Client Set Up Form ("Services").
Bank shail have the right to determine, in its sole discretion, the nature and extent of the Services to be

Revised 12/2010 "EXH'Bn-" f? " | ]



provided. The Services are the sole property of Bank, and Merchant has no rights in any of them, or any
other property of Bank or its suppliers, other than those rights expressly granted under this Agreement.
1.8 Acceass of Service. Bank will provide Merchant with an administrative user name and password
to access the Services. Merchant will designate an Administrator who shall be the sole individual vested
with the authority to determine who will be authonzed to use the Services, establish separate passwords
for each user; and establish limits on each users authority to access information and conduct
transactions. Merchant is responsible for the actions of its Administrator, the authority the Administrator
gives others to act on Merchant's behalf, and the actions of the persons designated by the Administrator
to use the Services. Merchant shall take reasonable security procedures and practices to safeguard the
confidentiality of the passwords, limit access to its passwords solely to persons who have a need to know
such information; closely and regularty monitor the activities of employees who access the Services; and
prohibit its employees and agents from initiating entries in the Services without proper authorization and
supervision and adequate security controls.

2. MERCHANT OBLIGATIONS:
21 Compliance. Merchant agrees to abide by all rules of the National Automated Clearinghouse
Association {("NACHA") as they apply to electronic check conversion and electronic funds transfers in
general. A copy of NACHA's rules may be found at www.achrulesonline.ora/. Merchant shall also comply
with al! federal and state laws, rules and regulations applicable to banking transactions and its respective
activities under this Agreement.

2.2 Remittance Documents. If applicable, Merchant agrees that Optical Character Remittance
(OCR) documents must comply with the specifications provided by the Bank and must be tested and
approved by the Bank prior to use. Merchant further agrees that any changes to the OCR documents
must be pre-approved by the Bank,

2.3 Authorizations. Merchant understands that only checks initiated by an invoice or statement and
mailed to the customer, then maited in to Merchant for payment or dropped in a drop box at a payment
location can be converted to an ARC transaction.

+ g 1 o *

2.6 ndemnification. Merchant agrees to indemnify Bank and to hold the Bank harmless from and
against any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses which the Bank may incur or which
may be asserted against the Bank in connection with a breach of the Merchant's obligations,
representations or warranties under this Agreement, or otherwise arising out of Bank providing services to
the Merchant, provided, howsever, that the foregoing indemnity agreement shall not apply to claims,
damages, losses, liabilities and expenses solely attributable to Bank's gross negligence or wilifui
misconduct.

2.7 Fees. Merchant shall pay all fees and charges set forth on Exhibit A. Ali Service Fees are subject
to change by Bank upon 30 days written notice to Merchant. Merchant acknowledges and agrees that
Merchant is solely responsible for the payment of all Service Fees.

28 Returns after Termination. if a check or converted item that Bank has previously processed is
returned after Merchant has terminated this Agreement then Merchant agrees that Bank may debit
Merchant's account or, if such account has been closed by Merchant, Bank will send a request for
payment for such returned item(s) to Merchant and Merchant agrees to pay Bank within a commercially
reasonable time after receipt thereof.

2.9 Controls. Merchant agrees to maintain physical, procedural and administrative controls and
safeguards reasonably designed (taking into account the nature and circumstances of such party's
business) to ensure the security, integrity and confidentiality of Confidential Information, and to protect

Revised 1272010 2



against any anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of, or unauthorized access to, the
Confidential Information. '

2.10  Non-Disclosure. Merchant agrees not to discuss this Agreement or any fees and charges
specified in this Agreement with anyone other than employees of Merchant, who require such information
in the ordinary course and scope of their employment and other individuals whose assigned duties
reasonably require that such disclosure be made, or if disclosure is required in the case of legal process.
2.11  Duty to Report Errors. Merchant shall notify Bank of any errors, discrepancies, security
breaches, omissions, or interruptions in, or delay or unavailability of, the Services as promptly as
practicable, and in any event within one Business Day after the earliest of discovery thereof, or the date
discovery should have occurred through the exercise of reasonable care, and, in the case of any error,
within 14 days of the date of the earliest notice to Merchant which reflects the error.

2.12 Internet Disclaimer. Merchant understands that the use of the Internet involves the actions of
third parties and that the actions or inactions of such third parties can impair or disrupt Merchant's
connections to the Internet (or portions thereof). Utilization of the Internet depends in large part on the
performance of Intemet Services provided or controlied by third parties and the Bank cannot control the
flow of data over the Internet. Bank does not guarantee the availability or the flow of the Internet. In
addition, using the Internet Merchant assumes the risk of all programs and services to which Merchant
may subscribe that are located on Merchant's computer, including but not limited to security breaches of
Merchant's computer, breach of any Security Devices or for any losses to Merchant. Merchant shall
implement such security devices and procedures as it deems necessary to protect its information and
shall be responsible for any losses as a result of the failure or lack of such security devices. In no event
shalf the Bank be liable for any damages (whether in contract or in tort) as result of Merchant's use of the
Internet or the phishing or hacking of Merchant's information from Merchant's computer.

2,13  Liability for Fines. Merchant shall be liable for all fines levied against Bank by NACHA for any
violation of the ACH Rules arising from Merchant's intentional misconduct or negligence.

3. BANK'S OBLIGATIONS:

3.1 Payment of Deposits. Items processed by the Bank before 5:00 p.m. EST on any business day
(excluding ACH items), will be posted to the Merchant's account same business day. Items that are
processed after 5:00 p.m. EST, and items cleared through the ACH Network, will post to the Merchant's
account on the next business day. “Business Day” is any day excluding federal holidays, Saturdays and
Sundays. Bank shall have the right to reject any remote deposit for any reason at any time.

3.2 Returns. if applicable, the total of all daily ACH returns will post as a debit to Merchant's
account within two business days of each item’s effective date, as defined in NACHA rules. When an
Image IRD is returned, it will generally be received by Bank within five business days. Crediting of the
Merchant's account for remote deposits is provisional until collection is final.

33 Reports. Bank shall provide Merchant with daily reports via the system detailing items
processed, items converted to IRDs, if applicable, items presented as ACH debits and deposit
adjustments.

34 Retention of Check images. Merchant will have access to electronic images retained online for
two years and may request research on items for a total of five years from date of making. Bank will
retain all reports pertaining to processed documents and electronic images of all original paper checks for
five years from date of making.

3.5 Compiiance, Bank agrees to abide by all NACHA rules as they apply to electronic check re-
presentment and electronic funds transfers in general and shall also comply with all applicable federal
and state laws, rules and regulations applicable to its respective activities hereunder and related hereto.

4. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS
4.1 Account Administration. Bank agrees to open and manage a post office box for the payment of
funds into the lockbox account. Bank shall deposit funds into the account according to the process
described in this Agreement. Bank and Merchant agree to the following:
a.  Merchant shouid mail invoices to its customers in a prompt, businesslike manner.
b.  Bank is entitled to exclusive and unrestricted access to the lockbox contents and has the sole
right to direct transfer of lockbox account amounts.
c. Prior to deposit into Merchant's account, the lockbox content will not be available to the
Merchant except upon request to Bank and only with Bank's consent

Revised 12/2010 3



4.2 Application of Payments. Merchant is responsible for instructing all of its customers about the
requirements specified in this section. Each payment directed to the P.Q. Box must be accompanied by
an invoice.,

Bank will open, inspect, and date stamp all lockbox items. Bank or its agents will handle the
lackbox contents in the following manner:

a. Instruments Payable in Foreign Money. Instruments payable in foreign money will be sent to
the Bank's corresponding bank for collections and may take up to two (2) months to be
deposited into the lockbox account.

b. Missing Date. |n absence of a check date, Bank may insert the current date with a date
stamp and process the check.

c. Postdated. Checks postdated will be deposited on the date stated on the check. Bank will

. have no liability for processing and depositing postdated items into Merchant's account.

d. Stale Date. Checks dated six months or older may be deposited.

e.  Signature Missing. If the drawer's signature is missing and the check contains no-indication
of the identity of the drawer, the check may not be deposited. If the check is deposited, Bank
may affix a stamp impression requesting payor bank contact drawer for authority to pay.

f. Amounts Missing. Checks missing both script and numeral amounts will not be deposited.
Checks missing either script or numeral amounts may be deposited.

g. Payment in Full. Checks which reads, “Payment in Ful{", or similar words, will be deposited.
Merchant must inform its customers to address any disagreements regarding payment to a
location other than the lockbox. ;

h. Payment Method. Bank will recognize checks and cash as acceptable methods of payment
for deposit and will reject payment in any other form. Merchant acknowledges that numerous
discrepancies may occur when remittances are made in cash, assumes ail such risks, and
agrees that Bank has no liability for discrepancies in remittances made in cash.

i. Returmed Checks. In the event that a check deposited into Merchant's account is returned
unpaid because of insufficient funds or uncollected funds, Bank will return the check to
Merchant. Fees charged by bank for insufficient or uncollected funds will be debited from the
Merchant's account.

4.3 Processing Procedures After Inspection. Unless other arrangements are made, paper and
envelopes accompanying each remittance, including copies of additional correspondence, all
unprocessed or rejected items, and copies of deposit tickets will be forwarded by Bank to Merchant.

4.4 Remittance of Checks to Bank. If any of the lockbox account contents come into the
possession of Merchant's, any of its affiliates, or persons acting for or in concert with Merchant, all funds
shall be remitted to Bank or its agents by Merchant no later than the first business day following receipt.
4.5 Account Agreement Applicability. All lockbox contents processed and credited are subject to
the terms and conditions of Merchant's deposit account agreement. Each and every provision of the
account agreement between Merchant and Bank, with respect to Merchant's account, will remain in full
force and effect.

4.6 Confidentiality. Each party represents, warrants, and mutually agrees that all information
concerning the other party which comes into its possession shall be maintained as confidential and shail
not be used or divulged to any other party except as necessary to permit the activities contemplated
under the Agreement. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, Bank may share Merchant's information
with vendars as necessary to fulfill the Services hereunder.

4.7 Disputes; Applicable Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws
of the Commanwealth of Virginia without regard to conflict of law.

4.8 Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason upon 60
days prior written notice to the other party. Bank reserves the right to terminate this Agreement
‘immediately upon suspicion of fraud, illegal activity, misrepresentation or non-compliance. Termination of
this Agreement will not affect Bank's or Merchant's rights and obligations for transactions arising before
the termination. Merchant agrees that all financial obligations not previously satisfied shall survive
termination of this Agreement. Merchant further agrees to cooperate in good faith with Bank post-
termination to complete processing of any transactions in process on or arising prior to the termination
date and also to resolve any disputed items. In addition, the parties agree that the following sections will
survive termination of this Agreement. 2.1, 2.6-2.13, 3.4-3.5,46-4.10, and 4.13-4.14,

4.9 Force Majeure. Merchant acknowtedges that Bank cannot accept responsibility for errors, acts,
or failures to act by others, including and among other entities, banks, communication carriers or clearing
houses through which entries may be originated or through which Bank receives or transmits information

Revised 1272010 4



and no such entity will be deemed as Bank's agent. Bank cannot be held responsible for any loss, liability
or delay caused by fires, earthquakes, wars, civil disturbances, power surges or failures, acts of
governments, labor disputes, failures in communications or computer networks, legal constraints or other
events beyond its control.

4.10 Limitation of Liability. Merchant acknowledges that Bank's systems and procedures
established for providing the Services are commercially reasonable. Bank's liability to Merchant, or third
parties, under this Agreement shall, in every case, be limited to correcting, reversing, or otherwise making
accurate any debit or credit initiated by Bank through the ACH Network. Except as specifically required
by law, Merchant agrees that Bank shall not be responsible for any damages, loss, or property damage
incurred as a resuit of Merchant using Bank’s services set forth in this Agreement. Moreover, in no event
shall Bank be liable for any indirect, consequential, incidental, punitive, exemplary or special losses or
damages, or expenses which Merchant may incur by using the Services described in this Agreement
whether or not the possibility or likelihood of such damage was known or contemplated by Bank will also
be excused from failing to transmit or delay in transmitting an entry if such transmittal would result in it
exceeding any limitation imposed on it by any governmental or regulatory body.

Bank shall have no liability to Merchant, or any other person or entity for any loss, damage, cost,
or expense arising out of this Agreement or the Services [regardless of any form in which asserted,
whether in contract, tort (including negligence), warranty, or any other legal or equitable grounds, and
regardless of whether the remedies available fail of their essential purpose), except as provided by
applicable law for any error of delay in performing the Services provided for in this Agreement, and shall
have no liabiiity for not effecting an entry, if: ‘

a. Bank receives actual notice or has reason to believe that Merchant has filed or commenced a
petition or proceeding for relief under any bankruptcy or similar law;
b. The ownership of funds involving an entry or the Authorized Representative's authority to
transmit an entry is in question,;
c. Bank suspects a breach of the Security procedures;
d. Bank suspects that the Merchant account has been used for illegal or fraudulent purposes; or
Bank reasonably befieves that an entry is prohibited by federal law or regulation, or otherwise
50 provided in the Agreement,
THE DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF BANK UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE LIMITED TO
THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH AND UNDERTAKEN HEREIN. IN NO EVENT SHALL BANK OR
ITS AFFILIATES, SUPPLIERS OR SERVICE PROVIDERS BE LIABLE FOR (I) ANY LOSS OF USE,
REVENUE, PROFIT OR BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES OR INDIRECT, [INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, EVEN IF BANK OR ANY
SUCH AFFILIATE, SUPPLIER OR SERVICE PROVIDER IS INFORMED OR OTHERWISE IS AWARE
OR SHOULD BE AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OR LIKELIHOOD OF SUCH DAMAGES; (Il) LOSSES
OR DAMAGES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OR ARISING FROM OVERHEAD ALLOCATIONS OR GENERAL
AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS AND EXPENSES OF MERCHANT; (lll) LOSSES OR DAMAGES
CAUSED OTHER THAN BY BANK’S OWN GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT:;
AND (IV) LOSSES OR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE FRAUDULENT OR CRIMINAL ACTS OF
THIRD PARTIES, IN NO EVENT SHALL BANK BE LIABLE FOR ANY FRAUD COMMITTED BY
MERCHANT, IN MERCHANT LOCATIONS, BY ONE OF MERCHANT’'S EMPOLOYEES, AGENTS OR
CONTRACTORS OR AS A RESULT OF NEGLIGENCE BY ONE OF MERCHANT'S EMPLOYEES,
AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES OR CONTRACTORS. THE AGGREGATE CUMULATIVE LIABILITY
OF EITHER PARTY TO THE OTHER PARTY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LOSS OR DAMAGE FOR
ANY CAUSE WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TQ THIS MERCHANT AGREEMENT
WITH RESPECT TO CLAIMS (WHETHER THIRD PARTY CLAIMS, INDEMNITY CLAIMS OR
OTHERWISE) RELATING TO EVENTS DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT
UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES EXCEED SIX (8) TIMES THE AVERAGE AMOUNT OF MONTHLY
FEES ACTUALLY PAID BY MERCHANT TO BANK PURSUANT TO SECTION 2.7 HEREOF.
411 Audit. Merchant agrees to provide Merchant information and documentation, including but not
limited to financial statements, to Bank upon request. Merchant further agrees to make its records and
processes availabie for Bank's inspection at its any and all of its locations upon reasonabie notice and
during normal business hours.
412  Standard of Care. Bank's responsibility to Merchant under this Agreement is limited to the
exercise of ordinary care. If Bank substantially complies with the procedures in this Agreement, Bank will
be considered to have exercised ordinary care. If Bank occasionally and unintentionally deviates from the

Revised 1272010 5



procedures in this Agreement, the deviation will not be considered to be a failure to exercise ordinary care
in respect to the transactions in which they occurred.
413 Representation and Warranties.
a. General. Each party represents and warrants to the other party: :
i. It has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement
ii.  The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the individual executing it has been
duly authorized; and
ii.  This Agreement does not breach any other agreement to which it is a party or is
bound.

B. No Other Warranties. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN SECTION 4.10, BANK
HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS AND MERCHANT EXPRESSLY WAIVES, ANY AND
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE {IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY COURSE OF DEALING BETWEEN
THE PARTIES). THE SERVICES HEREUNDER ARE NOT WARRANTED TO BE FREE
FROM ERROR OR INTERRUPTION. NO DESCRIPTIONS OR SPECIFICATIONS,
WHETHER OR NOT INCORPORATED INTO THIS AGREEMENT, SHALL CONSTITUTE
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND.

4.14 Indemnification. Subject to Section 4.10, each party covenants and agrees te indemnify and
hold harmless the other party, its affiliates and their respective officers, directors and employees and
permitted assigns against any claim, suit, demand, action or other proceeding brought against them by a
third party and against any losses, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and fines and
penalties assessed by any regulatory authority) or arising there from to the extent that the foregoing arise
or result from any breach of terms, covenants, representations, warranties and any other provisions
contained in this Agreement.

4.15 Security Procedures. The Merchant shall comply with the security procedures described herein;
and in the Documentation. The Merchant acknowledges that the purpose of such security procedures is
for the verification of authenticity and not to detect an error in the transmission or content of an item or
electronic entry. No security procedure for the detection of any such error has been agreed upon
between Bank and the Merchant.

a. The Merchant understand that the use of authentication credentials and the Service
instructions is confidential and agrees to assume all risks of accidental disclosure or
inadvertent use by any person whatsoever, whether such disclosure or use is the result, in
whole or in part of the Merchant's negligence or a deliberate act. The Merchant
acknowledges that no person employed by Bank should ever ask for any passwords and that
Bank employees do not need and should not ask for passwords.

b. The Merchant shall change its authentication credentials periodically and whenever anyone
who has access to an authentication credential is no langer employed or authorized by it to
use the Service. Bank may require the Merchant to change its authenticaticn credentials at
any time. Bank may deny access to the Service without prior notice if it is unable to confirm
{to its satisfaction} any perscn’'s authority to access the Service or if Bank believes such
action is necessary for security reasons.

416 Attorney’s Fees. If any aclion is brought by either party against the other regarding the subject
matter of this Agreement, including any court action, arbitration proceeding, referral to collection agency
or lawsuit for collection, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any relief granted,
reasonable attorney's fees, costs of court, expert witness fees and other expenses of action.

4.17 Compliance with Laws. Each party will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws
and regulations with respect to this Agreement and such party’s activities covered by or related to this
Agreement. _

4.18 Notices. Unless otherwise permitted herein, any notice, consent, request or other
communication required or permitted to be given by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
deemed given when hand-delivered or deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, or
transmitted by, telegram, telex, facsimile or electronic mail. Any such notice to either party shall be
directed to the person (or department) and address as Bank may have on file for the delivery of
statements on Merchant's Account. Each party may designate by notice in writing a new address to which
any notice or other communication may thereafter be given.

419 Reiationship Between Parties. This Agreement will not be construed as creating an agency,
partnership, joint venture, or any other form of association, for tax purposes or otherwise, between the

Revised 12/2010 6




parties, and the parties will at all times be and remain independent contractors. Except as expressly
agreed by the parties in writing, neither party will have any right or authority, express or implied, to
assume or create any obligation of any kind, or to make any representation or warranty, on behalf of the
other party or to bind the other party in any respect whatsoever.

4.20 Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the sole exclusive benefit of Bank and the
Merchant and is not intended to benefit any third party.

421  Assignability. Merchant shall not assign or dispose of any rights of obligations under this
Agreement without the prior written consent of Bank. This Agreement is binding on the successors and
permitted assigns of the parties.

4.22 Miscellaneous. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between Bank and Merchant
concerning the Services hereunder. If any provision of this Agreement is deemed unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will stil be enforceable. No modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be
effective or enforceabie unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the following signatures and seals; Merchant and Bank have caused this
Agreement to be duly executed on their behalf as of the date set forth below.

Merchant: Bank

By: {Seal) By: {Seal)
Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date; Date:

APFROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

By:

HERBERT F. DARBY
City Attorney

Revised 12/2010 7



.

Lock Box Services Proposal Exhibit A
October 8, 2010
Per tem Estimated
Charge Cost Per

Month Yr1 Yr 2 (3%) Yr 3 (3%) Yr 4 (3%} Yr 5 (3%) 5 Yr Total
Number remittances 3,152 *** $3,152.00 $37,824.00 $38,958.72 $40,127.48 $41331.31 $42571.25 $200812.75
Single items 40% 1261 $ 015 $ 189.12 $ 226944 $ 240561 $ 254994 § 270294 $ 286512 $ 12,793.04
Mutitiple items 0% 946 $ 020 § 189.12 $ 226044 § 240561 § 254004 § 270294 § 286512 $ 12,793.04
Check only items 30% 946 $ 025 $ 23640 $ 283680 $ 300701 $ 318743 $ 3378867 $ 358139 $ 1599131
Rejected items 10% 315 % 015 $§ 4728 $ 56736 § 60140 $ 63749 $ 67573 $ 71628 § 3,19826
Image archival {check & remittance) 4728 $ 001 $ 4728 § 56736 $ 60140 $ 63749 $ 67573 § 71628 $ 3.198.26
Correspondence retumed 25 % 100 $§ 2500 $§ 30000 $ 31B0O $ 33v08B § 35730 § 37874 % 169113
File transmission (2 per day) 40 $ 750 $ 30000 $ 360000 % 381600 $ 404496 $ 428766 $ 454492 $ 20,29353
Standard batch summary report {2 per day) 40 $ 200 $ 8000 $ 96000 $ 101760 $ 107866 $ 114338 $ 121198 $ 541161
Post Office box rental 1% 4500 $§ 4500 $ 54000 $ 57240 $ 60674 $ 64315 $ 68174 $ 3.044.03
RemitWeb option 1 $150.00 $ 15000 $ 180000 $ 190800 $ 202248 § 214383 § 227246 $ 10,146.77
$1,309.20 $15,710.40 $16,653.02 $17652.21 $18,711.34 $1983402 $ B8 560.99
All in costs per remittance $ 042 & 043 % 044 § 045 % 047 % 0.44
Without RemitWeb option
RemitWeb option 1 $125.00 $ (150.00) $ {1,800.00) $ (1,908.00) % (2,022.48) § (2,143.83) § (2,272.46) § (10,146.77)
CD ROM archival 1$2000 § 2000 $§ 24000 $ 25440 $ 26966 % 28584 $ 30299 $ 1,35290
Payment inquiries/research (5 per day) 100 $ 3.00 § 30000 § 360000 § 381600 $ 404496 $ 428766 $ 454492 $ 20,29353
$1.479.20 $17,750.82 $18,81585 51994479 $21,141.46 $22409.94 $100,061.10
Alt in costs per remittance $ 047 % 048 % 050 % 051 % 053 § 0.50

e

3 months average (Jul-Sep) actual # checks via drop box and mail






